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Location

17 Como Street, ALPHINGTON VIC 3078 - Property No 274380

Municipality
YARRA CITY

Level of significance

Incl in HO area indiv sig

Heritage Overlay Numbers

HOG68

Heritage Listing

Yarra City

Statement of Significance
Last updated on - January 1, 2008

The following wording is from the Allom and Lovell Building Citation, 1998 for the property. Please note that this is
a "Building Citation", not a "Statement of Significance". For further information refer to the Building Citation held
by the City of Yarra.

History:



In 1885 Thomas Wills' Lucerne Farm, established in (he 1840s, was subdivided | n t o the Lucerne Estate by
renowned Heidelberg developer, A D Hodgson.

Hodgson subdivided the western part of Lucerne Farm in two stages to create Constance, Chamouni and St
Bernard Streets, followed by St Gothards and Genera Streets. At the bottom of the first subdivision, at St Bernard
Street, Peter H Fanning, a former Heidelberg farmer, purchased two lots in the name of this wife, Mary Alicia
Fanning.

Peter Fanning reputedly came from a farm at Moonee Ponds to the Banyule Estate, at Heidelberg, where he
leased a farm from James Graham. From the 1850s to 1878, Fanning was locally active; elected to the
Heidelberg Road Board in 1868, the Shire Council in 1871, and to the Shire Presidency in 1877. He took an
interest in many municipal matters, including the design and supervision of the establishment of Heidelberg Park,
stemming from his private interest in botany and floriculture. Fanning left Heidelberg in 1878, purchasing part of
the Berlin Estate, north of Bell Street, in the following year. He became a hotel keeper for a time but, at the age of
62, he retired to Alphington where he built Balclutha, possibly to the design of the architects Twentyman &
Askew, in 1889. He lived there until his death in 1905; the property was then leased out for the following fifteen
years. A subsequent owner was a fruit merchant, Edwin Mason.

Description:

Balclutha, 17 Como Street, Alphington is a large, single-storey Italianate rendered brick villa. The west elevation
has a concave-profile corrugated iron verandah with cast iron posts, grouped at the corners, and an unusual,
relatively heavy, cast iron lacework frieze. The verandah wraps around a polygonal bay which has large, floor-
length double-hung sash windows. Other windows have semi-circular arched heads; one is Serlian in form. There
is a moulded string course at impost level. The four-panelled front door has leadlight side-and highlights. The
hipped, slate roof has delicate cast iron lacework ridging and finials, and is penetrated by rendered chimneys with
bracketed moulded caps and barrelled tops.

The verandah floor is now of concrete.

The surrounding garden includes mature specimens; apparently, however, most date from this century from
Balclutha's second owner who was the fruit merchant, Edwin Mason and his family, who came to Alphington from
Auburn, in ¢.1920.5 These plants include "Morus alba' (White Mulberry), “Grevillea robusta’ (Silky Oak) and
“Ficus pumila’ (Climbing Fig), which covers many earlier grottoes and forms topiary around the entrance. At the
rear there were the stables, coach and harness and a pitched yard.

Of the original perimeter fence, only the capped corner and gate posts remain.
Significance:

Balclutha is of local historical and architectural significance. It has associations with Peter Fanning, a former
Shire President of Heidelberg whose farming activities were important in the early history of Alphington.
Architecturally, the house is a particularly substantial and very intact Italianate villa with considerable ornamental
detailing and which is situated on a site which is notable for its size. The garden, which retains early plantings, is
of importance.

Yarra - Northcote Urban Conservation Study, Graeme Butler &amp; Associates, 1982;
Yarra - City of Yarra Heritage Review, Allom Lovell &amp; Associates, 1998; Yarra - City
of Yarra Review of Heritage Overlay Areas, Graeme Butler &amp; Associates, 2007;
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Physical Description 1

Balclutha, 17 Como Street, Alphington is a large, single-storey Italianate rendered brick villa. The west elevation
has a concave-profile corrugated iron verandah with cast iron posts, grouped at the corners, and an unusual,
relatively heavy, cast iron lacework frieze. The verandah wraps around a polygonal bay which has large, floor-
length double-hung sash windows. Other windows have semi-circular arched heads; one is Serlian in form. There
is @ moulded string course at impost level. The four-panelled front door has leadlight side-and highlights. The
hipped, slate roof has delicate cast iron lacework ridging and finials, and is penetrated by rendered chimneys with
bracketed moulded caps and barrelled tops.

The verandah floor is now of concrete.

The surrounding garden includes mature specimens; apparently, however, most date from this century from
Balclutha's second owner who was the fruit merchant, Edwin Mason and his family, who came to Alphington from
Auburn, in ¢.1920.5 These plants include "Morus alba' (White Mulberry), “Grevillea robusta’ (Silky Oak) and
“Ficus pumila’ (Climbing Fig), which covers many earlier grottoes and forms topiary around the entrance. At the
rear there were the stables, coach

and harness and a pitched yard.

Of the original perimeter fence, only the capped corner and gate posts remain.

Integrity
Good

This place/object may be included in the Victorian Heritage Register pursuant to the Heritage Act 2017. Check
the Victorian Heritage Database, selecting 'Heritage Victoria' as the place source.

For further details about Heritage Overlay places, contact the relevant local council or go to Planning Schemes
Online http://planningschemes.dpcd.vic.gov.au/
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